* - - - . L]

Earth Negotiations Bulletin

. r * L) L) L] L] L] L] L] . . » * *

A Reporting Sem’lce for Emzronmenr and Development Negotiafions

Vol. 12 No. 61

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

27 October 1997

HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE MEETINGS OF THE
FCCC SUBSIDIARY BODIES
24-25 OCTOBER 1997

Delegatesto the eighth session of the Ad Hoc Group onthe
Berlin Mandate (AGBM-8) held "non-group™ meetings Friday on
quantified emission limitation and reduction objectives (QELROS)
and policiesand measures. The seventh session of the Subsidiary
Body for Scientific and Technical Advice (SBSTA-7) considered:
cooperation with international organizations; theroster of experts;
activitiesimplemented jointly (AlJ); technol ogy transfer; national
communications and methodol ogical issues. The Chair of the
AGBM convened abriefing for observers. AGBM non-groups
continued their discussionson Saturday, 25 October..

OBSERVER BRIEFING

Luiz Gylvan MeiraFilho (Brazil), Chair of thenon-group on
QEL ROs, reported that the group had looked at relevant para-
graphsin the consolidated negotiating text in numerical order. He
reported agreement among del egatesthat thefirst paragraph of the
articleon QELROs should be simplein stating and introducing
commitments. Heindicated that there had been adiscussion onthe
legal implications of listing commitmentswithin thetext of the
protocol or legally binding instrument or under a separate appendix
or attachment. The concern waswhether furthering commitments
inthefuturewould require Partiesto ratify amendmentsto the
protocol or legally binding instrument .

He said consensuswas emerging that abalance should be
struck whereby thelegally binding nature of commitmentswould
not be undermined by the adoption of moreinformal amendment
procedures. He noted that theissuewould be taken up by the non-
group oninstitutionsand mechanisms. He also said that somedele-
gationswanted to emphasize theimportance of GHG sinks, while
otherssaid that IPCC methodol ogiesfor calculating their effi-
ciency aremarked by ahigh level of uncertainty. He said criteria
for sinks had been discussed, including measuresto enhance them
and their absorption capacity.

EvansKing (Trinidad and Tobago), Chair of the non-group on
Article4.1, reported that the group had considered paragraphson
advancing commitmentswithout i ntroducing new onesfor non-
Annex | Parties, the preparation and periodic updating of national
inventoriesof GHG emissionsand removals, and | PCC methodol -
ogies. He said acontact group dealt with the most difficult matters.

Takao Shibata (Japan), Chair of the non-group on institutions
and mechanisms, said that there seemed to be abroad under-
standing that the COP would be the governing body of the
Protocol, that institutional economy should guide structural
arrangements and that Protocol institutions should be distinctive.

SUBSIDIARY BODIES FOR SCIENTIFIC AND
TECHNOLOGICAL ADVICE

IPCC Chair emeritus Bert Bolin highlighted recent results of
the Panel'swork. He said climateinertiaand thelong life of gases
meansthat thefull effects of past emissionswill occur evenif
future emissionsare reduced, slowing the effect of emissions
reductions. Evenif Annex-I countries reduce emissions30-90
percent, global emissionswould reach two to threetimes 1990
levels. Hesaid aslow start isdifficult to correct later. He also noted
largemarginsof error in calculating natural sourcesand sinks, such
that an accurate calculation for terrestrial sourcesand sinksisnot
presently possible. Because deteriorating global observation
networksmay handicap future science on climate change, he
proposed that the COP assess needs to maintain the networks.

IPCC Chair Robert Watson summarized the Panel'sreport on
regional impacts, noting that it assessesvulnerability to climate
change because the ability to predict impactsfor specific places
andtimesislimited. Thereport covers 10 regions. Among thekey
conclusionsare: ecosystems, especially forestsand coral reefs, are
highly sensitiveto climate change; billions of people could be
impacted by exacerbated problemsin drinking water supply, sani-
tation, and drought; food production could decreasein thetropics
and subtropics, despite steady global production; significantly
adverse effectson small island statesand low-lying deltassuch as
in Bangladesh, Egypt and Chinacould displace tens of millions of
peoplewith one meter of sea-1evel rise; heat stressmortality and
vector-borne diseases could increase; and that most effectsare
negative for the most vulnerable devel oping countries.

Among regional findings, he noted: that Africaismost vulner-
able because poverty limitsthe capacity for adaptation; that arid
western Asiaand Australiacoul d face exacerbated water scarcity;
that vulnerabl e systemsface multiple stressesin Latin America;
that changes could challenge adaptation evenin natural forestsand
water resourcesin partsof North America; and that sealevel rise
threatensculturesif not elimination of small island states. He said
theThird Assessment Report (TAR) would focuson regional
impacts, have chapters on science, impacts and adaptation, and
mitigation, and include apolicymaker synthesisreport.

CANADA,MALAYSIA andtheMARSHALL ISLANDSsaid
the COP should addressthe decline of global observation
networks, while SAUDI ARABIA had reservations. TheUSsaid
thefindingsemphasize the need for devel oping countries' partici-
pation and that their vulnerability underscoresthe urgency of
action. Thelnternational Civil Aviation Organization, not SBSTA,
should deal with aviationdecisions. The MARSHALL ISLANDS
said thevulnerability report wasa"death sentence” for small island
states, and that the TAR must clarify scenarios and determinewhat

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bull etin <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by PaolaBettelli <paobe@sprynet.com>, Chad Carpenter, LL.M. <chadc@iisd.org>, Peter
Doran <PF.Doran@ulst.ac.uk> and Steve Wise <swise@igc.apc.org>. The Editor isPamelaChasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor isL angston JamesKimo|
Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>.Thesustaining donorsof the Bulletin arethe Netherlands Ministry for Devel opment Cooperation, the Government of Canadaand the United States|
of America (through USAID). Support for this edition was also provided by the UNFCCC Secretariat and the Canadian Pulp and Paper Association. General support for the|
Bulletin during 1997 is provided by the Department for International Development (DID) of the United Kingdom, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Denmark, the European
Community (DG-XI), the German Ministry of Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety, the Ministries of Environment and Foreign Affairs of Austria, the
Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the Swiss Federal Office of the Environment, and UNDP. ENB can be contacted at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD
can be contacted at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, ManitobaR3B 0Y 4, Canada; tel: +1-204-958-7700; fax: +1-204-958-7710. The opinionsexpressedin ENB
arethose of the authorsand do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerptsfrom ENB may be used in non-commerical publicationsonly and only with
appropriate academic citation. Electronic versions of ENB are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages.




Vol. 12, No. 61 - 27 October 1997

Page 2

isdangerous. CHINA said because predictions
for 100 year scenariosareunreliable, itisimpossiblefor devel-
oping countriesto adopt actionsfor the next 100 years.

ZIMBABWE introduced areport on ajoint SBSTA/IPCC
meeting onthe |PCC’ s Third Assessment Report (TAR). Thejoint
meeting wasinformed of the |PCC’ sdecisionsregarding the scope,
structure, content, timing and dissemination of the TAR. The Chair
invited commentson thereport of the SBSTA/IPCC session,
reminding delegationsthat the |PCC hasinvited guidance on
policy-relevant questions. The US supported the addition of a
chapeau, noting the closeness of SBSTA'sfinal sessiontothe
deadlinefor submissionsto the|PCC. On additional policy rele-
vant questionsto be addressed, Parties made thefollowing sugges-
tions: areferenceto additional gasesthat arebelievedto havea
radiativeforcingimpact, and theimportance of monitoring the
adequacy of the systematic observation system (US); the use of
non-English languagereferencesin support of IPCC reports
(MONGOLIA); and explanations of therange of uncertainty in
IPCCfindings(MALAY SIA). The Chair announced aninformal
meeting of SBSTA and IPCC experts.

The Chair invited comments on draft conclusions on the Roster
of Experts(Item 7). The NETHERLANDS said the essence of the
draft conclusionsisarequest to the Secretariat to continue using
theroster for methodol ogical and technical guidanceand aninvita:
tion to prepare an eval uation before COP-5. Thedraft conclusions
also deal with: intergovernmental technical advisory panels
(ITAPS); expansion of theroster in thefield of methodol ogies; the
criteriato be used when utilizing members of theroster; areview of
the standardized form for collecting informati on on nominees; and
arequest that the Secretariat report on criteriaused for selection.
The Chair invited interested Partiesto reformul ate referencesto
regional representation . SAUDI ARABIA expressed concerns
about the possihility of important tasks being dominated by one
region. The PHILIPPINES introduced an amendment on criteria
for using roster members, ensuring that the element of capacity
building isfully respected. MALAY SIA said SBSTA could
request, not authorize, the Secretariat to continue using theroster.

On AlJ, the Co-Chair of the contact group reported that the
group had worked from proposal sby the US, Norway and Switzer-
land, which theco-Chair tried to incorporate. The G-77/CHINA
requested moretimeand later submitted anew proposal. Delegates
agreed to allow moretimefor the contact group to reach consensus.

The Co-Chair of the contact group on technology transfer
reported that the group could not completeitswork. Thegroup
considered proposalsfromthe G-77/CHINA. Delegatesal so
discussed draft conclusions on national communicationsfrom
Annex | Parties produced by the SBSTA and SBI Chairs, aswell as
adraft decision on methodol ogical issues.

NON-GROUP ON QELROs-2

The new non-group on QELROs chaired by BoKjéllen
(Sweden) discussed an articlein the consolidated negotiating text
on the establishment of baseyearsor periodsfor theimplementa-
tion of commitmentshby Annex | Partiesundergoing transitionto a
market economy. A proposal by agroup of countriesto deletethe
paragraph met objection. A country, representing Annex | Parties
with economiesintransition, introduced aproposal to allow flexi-
bility in the establishment of baselines. A regional group indicated
that flexibility was acceptable aslong asthe agreed text provided a
degree of certainty. The non-group al so addressed articleson emis-
sionshorrowing and banking for Annex | Parties or Partieswho
undertake voluntary commitments. Whileagroup of countries
objected to these flexibility mechanisms, one country indicated that
its QELROswould depend on them. Others supported the view that
banking or "saving" emissionsfrom one budget period for the next
was acceptable, while borrowing wasnot..

NON-GROUP ON QELROs-1

The QELROs-1 non-group chaired by Luiz Gylvan MeiraFilho
(Brazil) met inthe afternoon and discussed flat rate and differenti-
ated targets. The Chair characterized theflat rate approach asthe
majority view and suggested that Partiesfavoring differentiation
proposean Annex C. Two countriesrejected the characterization
made by the Chair. Some countries considered that Annex C and
the attachment should not be discussed until theissue of differenti-
ationissettled. The Chair proposed adding text to thefirst para-
graph of the article on QELROS to the effect that Annex | countries
"shall ensure" that they will meet the agreed target. A delegation
questioned the meaning of languagein aparagraph suggesting that
Annex | countries should make"demonstrable progress" by 2005,
whilearegional group expressed its preferencefor aspecific target
inthat year and another del egation objected to the paragraph.

NON-GROUP ON POLICIES AND MEASURES

Thenon-group on policiesand measures (P& Ms) metinthe
afternoon and further considered proposal sfrom two groups of
countries. Some del egates reported little movement in positions. A
contact group wasformed to discussaparagraph under which
Partieswould aim to implement P& Msin specified priority areas.
Another group wasformed to consider paragraphs on cooperating
to enhancetheindividual and combined effectiveness of P& Msand
on devel oping common performanceindicators.

SATURDAY SESSIONS

The QELROs-2 non-group discussed emissionstrading and
joint implementation. One group of countries proposed deleting
referencesto both items, while some devel oping countrieswithin
that group suggested that the COP could establish apilot phasefor
theseactivities. An Annex || country supported the existing text .A
regional group said its position on these mechanismswas contin-
gent upon QEL ROsdecisions. QEL ROs-1 discussed theinclusion
of GHGsand sink categoriesin an Annex. On country said that all
gases should beincluded inthe protocol and an Annex was unnec-
essary. The Chair indicated that no decision had been reached on
including all gases. One del egation proposed a separate annex for
sinks. Thenon-group al so discussed national systemsfor the esti-
mation of emissionsand sinks. One del egation considered that
these national reporting systems should be established for all gases,
whileothersconsidered they should belimited to gases coveredin
theprotocol. Two delegations said that countries should beableto
use methodol ogies other than |PCC ones. A contact group was
established on Global Warming Potentials (GWPs).

Intheinstitutions and mechanisms non-group, therewas broad
agreement that the COP should serve asthe Meeting of the
Parties.” Del egates debated whether distinct costs of Secretariat
servicesfor the protocol should be met by the Partiesthereto. There
wasgeneral agreement on the multilateral consultative
process.Three del egations objected to aprovision allowing amend-
mentsto the protocol under athree-quarters majority vote. Inthe
Article4.1 non-group, an article on national reporting, agroup of
countries proposed del eting “ voluntary commitments,” and
proposed apenalty fund. Other del egations strongly disagreed with
both proposals

THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY
AGBM:AGBM isscheduledto meetin Plenary at 10:00 am.
Non-Group on QELROs: Thisnon-group will meet at 3:00

pm.
Non-Group on Institutions and Mechanisms: Thisnon-
group will meet at 3:00 pm.



